

ORDINANCE NO. ____

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DESERT HOT SPRINGS, CALIFORNIA, AMENDING CHAPTER 2.44 OF THE DESERT HOT SPRINGS MUNICIPAL CODE, DISBANDING THE CITY'S COMMUNITY AND CULTURAL AFFAIRS COMMISSION AND GRANTING CERTAIN AUTHORITY TO THE CITY MANAGER OR HIS/HER DESIGNEE

WHEREAS, the City of Desert Hot Springs ("City") established a Community and Cultural Affairs Commission (the "CCAC"); and

WHEREAS, Chapter 2.44 of the City's Municipal Code establishes and provides for the creation, duties, authority, rules, records, and meetings of the CCAC; and

WHEREAS, in order to streamline City processes and to make more efficient use of City personnel and resources, the City Council has determined that it is in the best interests of the City and the public to disband the CCAC.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Desert Hot Springs as follows:

Section 1. RECITALS

That the above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated as though fully set forth herein.

Section 2. DISBANDMENT OF COMMUNITY AND CULTURAL AFFAIRS COMMISSION

The City's Community and Cultural Affairs Commission is hereby disbanded.

Section 3. AMENDMENT OF DESERT HOT SPRINGS MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 2.44

Desert Hot Springs Municipal Code Chapter 2.44 is hereby amended to read as follows:

Chapter 2.44 COMMUNITY AND CULTURAL AFFAIRS – GENERAL POWERS COMMISSION

2.44.010 Created.

~~There is created a Community and Cultural Affairs Commission for the City, which shall be known as the Desert Hot Springs Community and Cultural Affairs Commission, consisting of five members and one alternate member selected by the City Council, serving without compensation, and appointed in the manner and for the terms prescribed in Section 2.24.020 of this code. (Prior code § 32.50)~~

-

2.44.020 Chairperson.

~~Designation of Chairperson for the Commission shall be governed by Section 2.24.060 of the municipal code. The Commission shall be authorized to appoint and fix the membership of such number of standing and temporary committees as it may find expedient for the performance of its duties. (Prior code § 32.51)~~

-

2.44.030 Rules and records.

~~The Commission may establish such rules and regulations as it deems necessary for the conduct of its business. The Commission shall cause proper records to be kept of its minutes, actions, findings and determinations. The records shall be forwarded to the City Clerk for filing and they shall be public records. (Prior code § 32.52)~~

-

2.44.040 Meetings.

~~A majority of the existing appointed members of the Commission shall be considered a quorum for the transaction of business. The Commission shall meet at least once a month at such time and place as shall be fixed by the City Council. In matters relating to holding and conducting regular and special meetings, the Commission shall be bound by the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act of the state, as it may be amended. (Prior code § 32.53)~~

-

2.44.010- Powers and Authority

The powers and duties of the **former** Community and Cultural Affairs Commission **shall be vested in the City Manager or his/her designee as follows.** ~~shall be advisory to the City Council in the following general areas:~~

~~A. Perform all of the functions assigned to a Community and Cultural Affairs Commission by the City Council, as may be appropriate from time to time;~~

B. **Analyze Implement, within authority,** ~~community programs'~~ effectiveness and needs and recommend a planned orderly approach to the delivery of leisure and community services, especially to the City's youth and seniors;

~~C. Prepare and maintain community services master plans;~~

D. **Implement, within authority, and** ~~make recommendations as to~~ the development and maintenance of greenbelt areas, the City's parks, and the development and oversight of recreation, leisure and educational programs;

E. **Implement, within authority, and** ~~make recommendations to the City Council~~ on fees, operations, policies, maintenance, and budget for City parks and recreation facilities;

F. **Implement, within authority, and** ~~make recommendations to the City Council~~ concerning the development and promotion of Cabot's Old Indian Pueblo Museum;

G. **Implement, within authority, and Analyze-make recommendations to the City Council** ~~City cultural development and arts programs' effectiveness and needs and recommend to the City Council comprehensive solutions;~~

H. **Implement, within authority, and** ~~encourage art and cultural activities among residents of the City;~~

I. **Implement, within authority, and make recommendations** ~~Recommend to the City Council, **programs that promote** and upon authorization, conduct such programs as, in the opinion of the Commission, will increase goodwill and participation among residents of the community;~~

J. **Implement, within authority, and make recommendations to the City Council programs to promote** ~~Investigate and ascertain the community's needs and implement such programs and activities as will foster mutual understanding and respect amongst the City's diverse racial, religious, cultural and nationality groups;~~

K. **Implement, within authority, and make recommendations to the City Council on** ~~Make recommendations to the proper officials of the City on the assessment of the public art needs of the City;~~

L. Cooperate with other governmental agencies, private entities, and civic groups in the advancement of public arts planning and programming for the City;

M. **Implement, within authority, and make recommendations to the City Council** ~~Consider the annual budget for public art purposes during the budget process and make recommendations with respect thereto;~~

N. ~~Make recommendations for Research and~~ **apply for** ~~solicitation of grants and donations to implement and support the various programs and activities~~ **related to art and cultural activities** ~~of the Commission;~~

O. Encourage public and private partnerships;

P. **Implement, within authority, and make recommendations to the City Council** ~~Recommend the development, installation, maintenance, preservation, and display of public art;~~

~~Q. Recommend the organization of any financial support programs pertaining to the acquisition, maintenance, restoration, exhibition and display of public art on public property;~~

R. **Implement, within authority, and make recommendations** ~~Make recommendations to the City Council for the commissioning of artworks, the purchases or lease of art sites, agreements for the purchase and display of artwork, or the repair, maintenance or servicing of artwork;~~

S. Work cooperatively with City boards, commissions and committees and other public and private organizations in promoting art and cultural activities within the City.
(Prior code § 32.54)

-

2.44.060 Salaries of Community and Cultural Affairs Commissioners.

~~Each member of the Community and Cultural Affairs Commission shall receive a salary in the amount of \$50 per any officially convened Commission meeting that they attend. (Ord. 606 3-21-17)~~

Section 4. AMENDMENT TO CHAPTER 17.60 "ART IN PUBLIC PLACES PROGRAM" OF THE DESERT HOT SPRINGS MUNICIPAL CODE

Chapter 17.44.040 "Sign Permit Required" of Chapter 17.44 "Sign Regulations" of Title 17 "Zoning" of The Desert Hot Springs Municipal Code is hereby amended as follows:

Chapter 17.60 ART IN PUBLIC PLACES PROGRAM

17.60.010 Intent.

The purpose of this chapter is to:

- A. Promote the public interest and general welfare through the acquisition and installation of public art.
 - B. Promote the public interest and general welfare by enhancing the City's aesthetic environment through public art.
 - C. Establish requirements and procedures for developer contributions to public art.
 - D. Provide funding to support the acquisition and installation of public art.
- (Ord. 670 6-19-18; Ord. 593 1-17-17; Ord. 518 § 2, 2010; prior code § 159.29.010)

17.60.020 Definitions.

For the purposes of this chapter, unless otherwise apparent from the context, the following definitions shall apply:

"Applicant" means a developer of a development project subject to provisions of this chapter.

"Art" or "public art" or "public art project" means an original creation of art that is designed by a professional visual artist or artists. Art includes, but is not limited to, sculpture, mural or portable painting, earthwork, fiber-work, mosaic, photograph, print, calligraphy, any combination of forms of media, furnishings or fixtures including City use of art facilities.

"Artist" means any person who engages in an activity defined as an art, public art or public art project pursuant to this chapter.

"Building valuation" means the value of the building or other construction project based on the Building Official's estimate of the development project valuation, computed using the latest building valuation data as set forth in International Conference of Building Officials, unless in the opinion of the Building Official, a different valuation is appropriate for particular projects.

"City" means the City of Desert Hot Springs.

"City Council" means the City Council of the City of Desert Hot Springs.

"City Manager" means the City Manager of the City or designee.

~~"Community and Cultural Affairs Commission" means the Desert Hot Springs Community and Cultural Affairs Commission established pursuant to Chapter 2.44 of the City of Desert Hot Springs Municipal Code.~~

"Development project" means all physical changes and improvements needed to complete a new residential, commercial, or industrial project in the City. Such physical changes shall include the construction of new structures and buildings, expansion, remodeling or tenant improvement of any existing building or structure. For purposes of this chapter, "development project" specifically excludes the expansion, remodeling or tenant improvement of any existing commercial building or structure, valued at less than \$100,000.

"Financial security" means cash or bond.

"Freely available" means that the art is accessible to the public for viewing, in a direct line of sight, for a period of 10 hours per day, 7 days per week, with the

option of excluding national holidays. (Ord. 670 6-19-18; Ord. 593 1-17-17; Ord. 518 § 2, 2010; prior code § 159.29.020)

17.60.030 Development projects subject to public art contribution.

A. The requirements of this chapter shall apply to development projects as follows:

1. All residential development projects (that is, development projects designed to be used as homes for human habitation), where 3 or more individual residential units are being built concurrently in the same tract by the same owner. "Individual residential unit" is defined as 1 single-family dwelling or 1 unit in a multifamily residential development.
2. All commercial development projects (that is, development projects other than residential, industrial or public building) excluding expansion, remodeling or tenant improvement of any existing commercial building or structure, valued at less than \$100,000.
3. All industrial development projects located in any industrial zone excluding expansion, remodeling or tenant improvement of any existing industrial building or structure, valued at less than \$100,000.

B. Nothing contained in this chapter shall prevent the City Council from imposing requirements for inclusion of public art in particular projects not subject to the requirements of this chapter, pursuant to conditions imposed upon a particular discretionary approval, where it is determined that facts particular to the proposed development warrant such imposition. (Ord. 670 6-19-18; Ord. 593 1-17-17; Ord. 518 § 2, 2010; prior code § 159.29.030)

17.60.040 Final City approval.

A. No certificate of occupancy for any development project subject to this chapter shall be granted or issued, unless and until full compliance with the Art in Public Places Program is achieved in one or more of the following methods:

1. The approved public art has been placed in a manner satisfactory to the City Council, after consideration of the **City Manager, or his/her designee's recommendation.** ~~Community and Cultural Affairs Commission's recommendation.~~ Placement of public art shall be completed prior to the final inspection and issuance of a certificate of occupancy.
2. In-lieu public fees have been paid, if applicable pursuant to Section 17.60.050.
3. Financial security in an amount equal to the acquisition and installation costs of an approved public art, in a form approved by the City Attorney, has been posted. This option is available when an applicant or developer is not certain whether to contribute to the City's Art in Public Places Fund or to obtain approval of a public art. In such cases, the City Manager shall require the applicant to provide the security in the amount of funds required by this chapter for the project into the City's Art in Public Places Fund for a period of time not to exceed 1 year after the issuance of any building permit. This option will allow an applicant additional time to determine the desired alternative for compliance with the City's Art in Public Places Program requirements. The developer is, however, required to make the determination and either pay the

in-lieu fee, if applicable, or place or donate the public art, as provided by this chapter.

4. Donation of an approved public art has been accepted by the City Council.

5. In cases where approved public art is placed on private property pursuant to this chapter, the applicant or developer shall execute and record a covenant with the Riverside County Recorder, which sets forth the applicant's obligations to comply with the Art in Public Places Program. The covenant shall be recorded prior to the request for final construction inspections and the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy.

B. For the purposes of subsection A of this section, full compliance with the Art in Public Places Program shall not be found until the entire Art in Public Places Program contribution required pursuant to Section 17.60.050 for the development project has been satisfied. (Ord. 670 6-19-18; Ord. 593 1-17-17; Ord. 518 § 2, 2010; prior code § 159.29.040)

17.60.050 Art in Public Places Program contribution requirements.

The developer/applicant shall comply with either subsection A, B or C of this section.

A. **Public Art Requirement.** The developer shall acquire and install public art on or in the vicinity of the development site, in accordance with provisions of this chapter. The value of the public art, including acquisition and installation costs, shall be at least as follows:

1. **Residential Development Project.** The value of the public art shall equal 0.5% of the residential development project's building valuation (exclusive of land).

2. **Commercial Development Project.** The value of the public art shall equal 0.75% of the commercial development project's building valuation (exclusive of land).

3. **Industrial Development Project.** Industrial Development Projects must pay an in-lieu fee pursuant to subsection B below which shall equal 0.25% of the industrial development project's building valuation (exclusive of land).

Any such public art shall be subject to the approval of the City Council, after receiving a recommendation from the **City Manager, or his/her designee,** ~~Community and Cultural Affairs Commission~~. As an alternative the developer may elect to donate public art to the City for placement on public property pursuant to Section 17.60.110.

B. **Monetary Contribution In-Lieu of Public Art.** In lieu of acquiring and installing public art on or in the vicinity of the development site pursuant to subsection A of this section, the developer may elect to make a monetary contribution to the City's Art in Public Places Fund as follows:

1. **Residential Development Project.** In the amount equal to 0.5% of the residential development project's building valuation (exclusive of land).

2. **Commercial Development Project.** In the amount equal to 0.75% of the commercial development project's building valuation (exclusive of land).

3. Industrial Development Project. Industrial Development Projects must use this option and pay the in lieu fee in the amount equal to 0.25% of the industrial development project's building valuation (exclusive of land).

C. Nothing in this section shall prohibit the applicant from placing an approved public art with a value, including acquisition and installation costs, totaling an amount less than the Art in Public Places Program allocation provided for in this section, provided that, in that event, the developer shall also pay into the City's Art in Public Places Fund an amount equal to the difference between the Art in Public Places Program allocation and the value, including costs of acquisition and installation, of the public art placed. This subsection C shall not apply to Industrial Development Projects. (Ord. 670 6-19-18; Ord. 593 1-17-17; Ord. 518 § 2, 2010; prior code § 159.29.050)

17.60.060 Art in Public Places Fund.

A. Establishment of Art in Public Places Fund. There is hereby created a fund to be known as the Art in Public Places Fund into which shall be deposited all fees paid pursuant to this chapter.

B. Purpose of the Funds Collected. The funds collected pursuant to subsection B of Section 17.60.050 shall be used for the acquisition and, installation of public art in order to further the intent of this chapter, and to administer the Art in Public Places Program.

C. Use of the Funds Collected. ~~The Community and Cultural Affairs Commission shall make recommendations to the City Council regarding the proposed use of the funds collected pursuant to this chapter.~~ The City Council shall have the sole authority to appropriate for expenditure the use of such funds. The City Manager shall include in the annual budget and/or the Five-Year Capital Improvement Program the proposed use of funds collected pursuant to this chapter.

D. Records and Accounting. The City Manager or designee shall establish accounting records sufficient to identify and control the funds collected pursuant to this chapter.

E. Administrative Costs. No more than 25% of the funds collected pursuant to this chapter for each public art project shall be used to pay administrative costs, including the processing of the public art applications, reviewing and approving public art sites and art works, monitoring, compliance, and any other administrative task.

F. Program Administrative Costs. Of the administrative costs set forth in subsection E of this section, up to 2% may be used to pay program administrative costs, including costs associated with collecting in-lieu fees, recordkeeping, reporting, and general administration of the Public Arts Program. (Ord. 670 6-19-18; Ord. 593 1-17-17; Ord. 518 § 2, 2010; prior code § 159.29.060)

17.60.070 General procedures for implementing Art in Public Places Program.

A. The City Council subject to requirements of this chapter, shall find that the project as proposed complies with the provisions of this chapter.

B. Public Art Program Submittal. In conjunction with submittal of application(s) for the approval of a development project subject to this chapter, the applicant shall submit a public art compliance report to the City Manager. The public art compliance report shall specify:

1. The total building valuation of the project, provided by the City's Building Official and the calculation of the value of the applicant's required public art project;
2. The location of the public art project site or the reservation of a public art site, or whether applicant would like to donate the public art to the City for placement on public property; and
3. If eligible pursuant to Section 17.60.050, whether the applicant has elected to satisfy its public art contribution obligation through a public art contribution or through the payment of a fee in-lieu thereof, or a combination of the two in accordance with Section 17.60.050(C).

C. Timing of Public Art In-Lieu Contribution. If payment of in-lieu fee is applicable to the development project as specified in Section 17.60.050 and the applicant elects to make the public art in-lieu contribution, a requirement that public art in-lieu contribution payment be made prior to issuance of any building permit in the project based on building valuation for the particular building for which the building permit is sought. (Ord. 670 6-19-18; Ord. 593 1-17-17; Ord. 518 § 2, 2010; prior code § 159.29.070)

17.60.080 Application procedures for placement of art on private property.

An application for placement of public art on private property shall be submitted to the City Manager and shall include the following information, at minimum:

- A. Preliminary sketches, photographs, or other documentation of sufficient descriptive clarity to indicate the nature of the proposed public art;
- B. An appraisal or other evidence of the value of the proposed public art, including acquisition and installation costs;
- C. Preliminary plans containing such detailed information as may be required by the City Manager to adequately evaluate the location of the public art in relation to the proposed development, and its compatibility with the proposed development, including compatibility with the character of adjacent conforming developed parcels and existing neighborhood, if necessary to evaluate the proposal; and
- D. A narrative proposal with elevations, site plans, lines of sight studies, renderings and other descriptive materials, as deemed necessary by the City Manager, to be submitted to the City Manager, or his/her designee, ~~Community and Cultural Affairs Commission and eventually to be approved~~, denied or modified by the City Council, to demonstrate that the public art will be displayed in an area open and freely available to the general public or otherwise provide public accessibility in an equivalent manner based on the characteristics of the public art or its placement on the site. (Ord. 670 6-19-18; Ord. 593 1-17-17; Ord. 518 § 2, 2010; prior code § 159.29.080)

17.60.090 Review and approval for placement of public art on private property.

A. Review by City Manager, or his/her designee. The City Manager, or his/her designee, ~~Community and Cultural Affairs Commission~~ shall review and consider the completed application and make a recommendation to the City Council to approve, conditionally approve or deny the proposed public art, and its proposed location, considering the aesthetic quality and harmony with the proposed project, and the public accessibility to the public art.

1. If the applicant proposes significant revisions to the public art, a revised application shall be submitted to the City Manager, or his/her designee ~~Community Development Department~~ for review and recommendation to the City Manager, or his/her designee. The City Manager, or his/her designee ~~Community and Cultural Affairs Commission~~ shall make a recommendation to the City Council whether to approve, conditionally approve or deny the requested revision.

2. If the applicant proposes, or the City Manager, or his/her designee, ~~Community and Cultural Affairs Commission~~ recommends significant revisions to the architecture or physical design and layout of the proposed project subsequent to receipt of the City Manager, or his/her designee's, ~~Community Development Department's~~ recommendation, the revised application may be returned to the City Manager, or his/her designee, ~~Community and Cultural Affairs Commission~~ for further review and recommendation to the City Council.

B. Review by the City Council. The City Manager, or his/her designee, ~~Community and Cultural Affairs Commission's~~ recommendation to approve or conditionally approve an application for placement of public art on a private property shall be forwarded to the City Council, which shall have the sole authority to approve, conditionally approve or deny the application. (Ord. 670 6-19-18; Ord. 593 1-17-17; Ord. 518 § 2, 2010; prior code § 159.29.090)

17.60.100 Application procedure for acceptance of public art donated to the City.

An application for acceptance of public art to be donated to the City for placement on public property shall be submitted to the City Manager, or his/her designee, ~~Community Development Department~~, and shall include the following information, at minimum:

A. Preliminary sketches, photographs, models, site plan, lines of sight, or other documentation of sufficient descriptive clarity to indicate the nature of the proposed public art;

B. An appraisal or other evidence of the value of the proposed public art, including acquisition and installation costs;

C. A written agreement, in form approved by the City Attorney, executed by or on behalf of the artist who created the art, which expressly waives his/her rights under the California Art Preservation Act or other applicable law; and

D. Other information as may be required by the City Manager, or his/her designee to adequately evaluate the proposed donation of public art. (Ord. 670 6-19-18; Ord. 593 1-17-17; Ord. 518 § 2, 2010; prior code § 159.29.100)

17.60.110 Review and approval of application for acceptance of public art donated to the City.

A. In the event a developer elects to donate the public art to the City, prior to the issuance of grading and building permits, the developer shall submit to the Community Development Department an application for acceptance of public art donated to the City for review and recommendation to the City Manager, or his/her designee, which shall review and make a recommendation to the City Council for final action. The City encourages the applicant to submit an application prior to the development of the architect's schematic design. The City Manager, or his/her designee, ~~Community and Cultural Affairs Commission~~ shall review, consider and make a recommendation to the City Council to approve, conditionally approve or deny the application for donation of public art.

B. City Manager, or his/her designee's, recommendations shall be forwarded to the City Council, which shall have the sole authority to accept, reject or conditionally accept the donation. (Ord. 670 6-19-18; Ord. 593 1-17-17; Ord. 518 § 2, 2010; prior code § 159.29.110)

17.60.120 Ownership and maintenance of public art.

A. All public art placed on the site of the development project shall remain the property of the applicant or developer and the obligation to provide all maintenance necessary to preserve the public art in good condition shall remain with the owner of the site.

B. "Maintenance of public art," as used in this chapter, shall include, without limitation, preservation of the public art in good condition to the satisfaction of the reviewing body, protection of the public art against physical defacement, mutilation or alteration, and securing and maintaining fire and extended coverage insurance and vandalism coverage in an amount to be determined by the Risk Manager. Prior to placement of an approved public art, an applicant and owner of the site shall execute and record a covenant, agreement or other instrument, in a form approved by the City Attorney, for maintenance of the public art. Failure to maintain the public art as provided in this chapter is declared to be a public nuisance and may be abated as such pursuant to applicable provisions of City of Desert Hot Springs Municipal Code.

C. In addition to all other remedies provided by law, in the event the developer or property owner fails to maintain the public art, upon reasonable notice, the City may perform all necessary repairs, maintenance or secure insurance, and the costs therefor shall become a lien against the real property if not paid upon request by the City.

D. All public art donated to the City shall become the property of the City upon acceptance by the City Council. (Ord. 670 6-19-18; Ord. 593 1-17-17; Ord. 518 § 2, 2010; prior code § 159.29.120)

17.60.130 Annual report by City Manager, or his/her designee, ~~CCAG~~ concerning art on public property.

The **City Manager, or his/her designee,** ~~Community and Cultural Affairs Commission~~ may, but is not required to, recommend to the City Council the purchase of public art to be displayed on public property. The recommendation shall include the type of public art considered, an analysis of the constraints applicable to placement of the public art on a site, the need for and practicality of the maintenance of the public art, and the costs of acquisition and installation of the public art. (Ord. 670 6-19-18; Ord. 593 1-17-17; Ord. 518 § 2, 2010; prior code § 159.29.130)

17.60.140 Removal or alteration of art.

If any public art provided on a development project pursuant to the provisions of this chapter is knowingly removed by the property owner without the approval of the City Council, the owner of the property shall contribute funds equal to the development project's original public art requirement to the City's Art in Public Places Fund, or replace the removed public art with one which is of comparable value, which shall be reviewed by the **City Manager, or his/her designee,** ~~Community and Cultural Affairs Commission~~ which shall make a recommendation to the City Council for final action. (Ord. 670 6-19-18; Ord. 593 1-17-17; Ord. 518 § 2, 2010; prior code § 159.29.140)

17.60.150 Return of Art in Public Places Fund fees.

A. Fees paid into the City's Art in Public Places Fund which are not committed within 5 years from the date of payment may be returned to the then-current owner of the development project, with all interest actually earned thereon, if a written request for return is filed with the City's Director of Finance during the 5th year after payment, and refund of the fees is approved by the City Council. The request for return shall be verified, and shall include the date of payment, the amount paid and method of payment, the location of the new development for which the fee was paid, and a statement that the applicant is the payer of the fees or the current owner of the development project.

B. The City Council shall determine if return of the uncommitted portion of the fees and interest is appropriate and, if so, the method of refund. No refund shall be appropriate if the City Council determines any one of the following applies:

1. The City Council finds the fee is needed for the Art in Public Places Program.
2. Moneys were not posted as fees, but were satisfied by bond or other instrument taken to secure payment at a future date.
3. The administrative costs of refunding uncommitted fees pursuant to this chapter exceeds the amount to be refunded; provided notice of a public hearing on this issue has been published and posted on the site of the development project in not less than 3 places. (Ord. 670 6-19-18; Ord. 593 1-17-17; Ord. 518 § 2, 2010; prior code § 159.29.150)

Section 5. SEVERABILITY

The City Council declares that, should any provision, section, paragraph, sentence or word of this ordinance be rendered or declared invalid by any final court

action in a court of competent jurisdiction or by reason of any preemptive legislation, the remaining provisions, sections, paragraphs, sentences or words of this ordinance as hereby adopted shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 6. **REPEAL OF CONFLICTING PROVISIONS**

All the provisions of the Municipal Code as heretofore adopted by the City of Desert Hot Springs that are in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed.

Section 7. **EFFECTIVE DATE**

This ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after its second reading.

Section 8. **CERTIFICATION**

The City Clerk shall certify to the passage of this ordinance and shall cause the same to be published according to law.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Desert Hot Springs at a regular meeting held on the ____ day of _____, 2020 by the following vote:

Ayes:

Noes:

Abstain:

Absent:

Scott Matas, Mayor

ATTEST:

Jerryl Soriano, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Jennifer Mizrahi, City Attorney

"N:\DHSSO\0001-01 General\Doc\5639 - Ordinance Disbanding CCAC (draft)
(9.29.16).docx"